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Attachment J.11 - All Preventative Maintenance Tasks



RFP No. 080016-Amend. M004

Operation & Maintenance of the U.S. Capitol Power Plant Utility Distribution System,
Washington, D.C.
RFP No. 080016

PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING & SITE VISIT
LIST OF ATTENDEES

Thursday, May 30, 2008- 10:00 a.m.

LIST OF ATTENDEES

Telephone &
Names Representing FAX Numbers

Chuck Helm                         Green Contracting, Co. 410-780-0500
    410-780-0566

Jerry Franks             Elliot Lewis Corporation                  215-698-4400
Frank Carbone             Elliot Lewis Corporation                 215-671-1496

Ron Haas             Ross Infrastructure     410-229-0090
Scott Scherer             Ross Infrastructure                 410-229-0091

Dwain Clark             Environmental Resources Corporation     619-867-7509

Representing the Architect of the Capitol

Chris Lindsay             Contract Specialist/Procurement Division 202-226-2172
    866-221-4147

Brian Klein              Utility Systems Operator-CPP 202-226-2312
   

    
Kenneth Dayton              Tunnel Safety - CPP 202-226-7083

    

Ed Smolarsky High Voltage Electrician Supv. - CPP                 202-225-4559
    



1. Who is currently performing this work? Please give any historical data that 
would be useful in calculating the number of man hours required to perform 
this project broken down by labor category. 
 

The PM schedule requires the following: 

1,885 hours for maintenance mechanic 

94 hours for instrument technician 

414 hours for electrician 
  

It should be noted that these hours do not account for the fact that two entrants are 
required during PM service or that a confined space entry is required. 

 

2. Why is only 4 gas air monitors needed for each tour group? 
 

Current AOC policy is to check for Carbon Monoxide, Hydrogen Sulfide, 
Methane (LEL) and Oxygen Levels. 

The UDS system is typically well ventilated with approximately 7 air exchanges 
per hour via natural and/or mechanical means. The currently known airflow and 
historical air sampling data has proven the current protocols are adequate.      

 

3. C.2.1.1 states that all distribution lines are to be toured and inspected only 
once per week with 2 tour groups, one consisting of a 7 man team and the 
other consisting of a 10 man team but in section B it states that daily tours 
and inspections are to be performed.  Please clarify. 
 

This question can be answered in two parts, the first addressing the reference to a 
crew of seven (7) and ten (10) individuals.  The AOC anticipates the need for a 
group of only seven (7) individuals to perform the required preventative 
maintenance, minor repairs and inspections provided under this contract.   

However, the AOC has requested pricing to effect a crew of seven (7) individuals, 
the AOC would like optional pricing for a crew consisting of ten (10) individuals 
in the event that the inspections, maintenance and repair work is overcome by 
other operational directives.   

To be clear, this contract will only require a team of seven (7) or ten (10) 
individuals, not two separate teams.  The AOC will award only a crew of seven 
(7) or a crew of ten (10), not both. 



The second part of this question addresses a daily versus weekly inspection.  
Section C.2.1.1 infers that all tunnels, vaults, manholes and other areas covered 
by this contract will be inspected at a minimum of once per week.   

Section B refers to daily maintenance and inspections as the contractor will be 
performing daily inspections and maintenance to complete the inspections as 
required in Section C.  It is anticipated that the contractor will perform inspections 
of various areas each day to coordinate preventative maintenance and minor 
repair work in each section. 

 

4. Is it the Government’s intentions to have the inspection team identify major 
maintenance issues and perform preventive maintenance work, then upon 
each weekly inspection, issue an individual Task Order for major work that 
may be required? 
 

That is correct; the intention is to have the inspection team perform inspections of 
the tunnel systems, while performing routine preventative maintenance and minor 
corrective maintenance.  Major repairs will be handled under individual task 
orders dependant upon the nature and severity of the repair work in question.  The 
government may issue a unilateral task order on a not to exceed basis for 
emergency repairs requiring immediate response. 

 

5. Please provide the draft inspection sheets. - Richard Edmonds 

Please see attachment J.11 – All Preventative Maintenance Tasks 

 

 

6. What is ST Labor rate stand for in section B? 

 

ST labor rates means Straight Time or Regular Time labor rate. 

 

7. Please provide any information including background and assessment for the 
contract that was recently solicited on the steam distribution pipe wall 
assessment. 
 

This information is not relevant to the work performed under this contract and any 
information regarding the current solicitation package for the distribution pipe 
condition assessment will not be distributed as part of the solicitation package.   

 



8. Please provide a time line on Preventive Maintenance Schedule J.7 such as 
daily, weekly, monthly or annual requirements.  

Please see attachment J.11 – All Preventative Maintenance Tasks 

 

 

9. Please rename Section B to attachment J.9 for clarification.  

See attachment. 

 

 

10. In section C.1.1, please rename attachment J.6 for proper training confined 
space listed on page 4. -  

See attached revised Section J – List of Attachments 

 

 

11. Page 96 starts the access control policy but is listed as Section J.6. Please 
clarify -  

Attachment J. 5 is the Access Control Policy 

 

 

12. Please clarify the qualification requirement for personnel who are 
responsible for the 2 weekly tour groups. 
 

As noted in the response to question number three (3), there will only be one core 
team consisting of either a crew of seven (7) or ten (10) individuals.  The AOC 
has asked for pricing for a number of trades to address potential trades required to 
complete individual task orders issued for repair under this contract.  However, it 
is up to the contractor to determine the appropriate mix of trades and personnel as 
to accomplish the weekly inspection and preventative maintenance tasks as 
required in Section C.   

The AOC will evaluate the proposed trades to be included in the ‘core’ team, and 
use the proposed trades as an evaluation factor in determining award of the 
contract.   

 

13. Please provide any useful history of this project (ie. historical man hours that 
the government has worked to perform tasks broken down by labor 
categories or job function and the amount of time to perform weekly tours in 
the last 12 months). 



 

The AOC has been operating with an interim tunnel inspection team over the past 
year.  Historically the tunnel team consisted of several trades including certified 
welders, insulators and electricians.  There are no detailed maintenance records 
detailing tasks performed or trades used in the past 12 months. 

 

14. Why is there a need for an instruments control technician? 
 

It is not anticipated that an instrument and control technician would be required in 
the core inspection and preventative maintenance team.  However, an instrument 
and control technician could be required to repair or maintain meters in the steam, 
condensate and chilled water distribution systems.  Any maintenance or repairs to 
meters will be handled under individual task orders. 

 

15. Are all the trades listed in section C.3.2 actually needed for steam 
distribution maintenance or are some of these trades only useful for power 
plant maintenance? 
 

While it is not the intent of the AOC to provide for all of the trades listed in 
section C.3.2 in the ‘core’ inspection team, it is possible that certain repairs will 
require any and all of the trades listed in section C.3.2.   

The contractor will determine the number of and type of trades in their ‘core’ 
inspection and preventative maintenance team, which will be used by the AOC as 
an evaluation factor in determining contract award.   

Pricing for all other trades will be used to set firm fixed hourly rates for use in 
negotiating individual task orders for repair.  The AOC could elect to use trades 
provided under this task order to perform maintenance and repair work in the 
plant under the rates provided in this contract. 

 

16. I had planned to only submit resumes for the full time crew members not the 
other labor trades which will be subcontracted out.  Is this sufficient?  
 

While this is sufficient, it is highly recommended that the contractor submit 
resumes and past performance evaluations for all proposed subcontractors as this 
information will also be used to evaluate proposals in making a final 
determination and selection.  A contractor that does not submit this information 
for subcontractors will not be excluded from selection.  

 



17. Will you allow us to install alarm systems for the sump pumps on a task 
order? I believe this is crucial for the project which will allow us to promptly 
respond to flooding tunnels.  This will relieve a lot of stress for this project? 
 

The contractor should not bid this project assuming that a remote alarm system 
for sump monitoring will be installed.  The AOC agrees that alarm systems for 
remote sumps will alleviate stress for this project and does not oppose this 
approach.  However, installation of remote alarm systems will not be included in 
the award of this contract.  It is likely that installation of a remote alarm system, if 
approved by the AOC, would be awarded as a separate task order under this 
contract.   

 

18. Will the current scheduling office be made available to the contractor? 
 

The individual responsible for scheduling and maintaining the TMA maintenance 
system will be available to work with the contractor during the performance 
period of this contract.  This individual will provide training on the TMA system, 
including scheduling, updating and closing out work orders.  However, it will be 
the contractor’s responsibility to ultimately schedule work orders, preventative 
maintenance and inspection services under this contract. 

 

19. Do you have a current route or inspection schedule that you would like for us 
to follow and if so please provide?  
 

There is no formal route to be followed.  The contractor will be required to 
provide weekly inspection and preventative maintenance schedules, ensuring that 
each section of tunnel, underground vault and manhole is inspected on a weekly 
basis.  It is up to the contractor to provide a proposed inspection routing. 

 

20. Please describe areas that are asbestos free and don’t require PPE to work in 
and any future areas that are being abated that won’t require PPE. 
 

For bidding purposes, the contractor should consider all sections of CPP tunnels 
as asbestos contaminated for the duration of this contract.   

 

21. Is the Government reimbursing or paying for the contractor’s trailer?  
 

The AOC is not reimbursing or paying for the contractor’s trailer.  This cost 
should be incorporated into the contractor’s proposal. 



 

22. In section C.2.1.3 a) b) c) please clarify “shall be noted for repair or 
replacement”.  Is this a task order that is a reimbursable expense?  
 

Should the contractor find any deficiencies during preventative maintenance or 
tunnel inspections, they will note these deficiencies on the daily report.  As 
outlined in the contract, these deficiencies will also be noted in new corrective 
work orders in the TMA maintenance systems entered in by the contractor’s 
personnel.   

The contractor will also provide a proposal to repair or replace the affected 
equipment to be negotiated under a new task order.  The contractor will not affect 
repairs or replacement activities without a task order, any work done without a 
formal task order in place will be done at the risk of the contractor. 

 

23. Will the government dispose of all asbestos contaminated PPE at no cost to 
the contractor?  
 

The government will not dispose of all asbestos contaminated PPE.  For bidding 
purposes, the contractor should include this cost in the base bid. 

 

24. What equipment or tools will the government supply and clarify in 
Attachment J.7 tool groups basic, group B, and group C. 
 

The AOC is amending the solicitation and will not supply radios for 
communication within the tunnel system.  The contractor is responsible for 
providing and maintaining radios for each member of their team for use during 
performance of this contract. At the end of the contract, the contractor will turn 
over all radios to the AOC.  All other tools and equipment required to perform the 
inspection services and preventative maintenance under this contract will be 
furnished by the contractor. 

Tool basics group B and C were included in examples of generic preventative 
maintenance procedures to illustrate various tool groupings required by the work.  
For the purposes of the scope of this contract, the contractor can ignore references 
to tool groups in attachment J.7. 

 

25. Will a CPAR review be sufficient for past performance reviews instead of 
questionnaires?  In many cases, the air force contracting personnel have 
changed since we have worked and are not available to fill out the 
questionnaires.  
 



A CPAR review will be acceptable providing that it provides all of the 
information contained in the AOC past performance review questionnaire.   

Should the information contained in a CPAR submitted not address all of the 
questions contained on the AOC past performance review questionnaire, it could 
negatively impact the rating of that past performance review. 

 

26. What is the anticipated start up date?  
 

The contract start date is anticipated to be October 1, 2008, pending availability of 
government funding. 

 

27. What is the estimated closing date since amendments and other information 
is forthcoming? 
Closing date will be September 11, 2008. 

 

28. Can you send a copy of the sign in sheets to all vendors?  
Attendees list is included in this amendment. 

 

 

29. During the meeting of 05-30-08 it was mentioned that a few questions have 
already been asked and that the answers were to follow.  Can you provide 
those questions and answers? 
 

All questions and answers have been included in this attached Amendment. 

 

30. During the presentation you used a drawing of the tunnels.  Can you provide 
either a copy of the drawing or a redacted version for our use in bidding?  

Due to security concerns, drawings will not be released. However, if you would 
like to view drawings on site, please coordinate with Brian Klein, Utility Systems 
Operator to view drawings. He can be contacted at (202) 226-2312. 

 

31. Is there a specific count of how many manholes there are and how many of 
those have ladders for entry exit? 
 

The drawings of the tunnel system provide a count of manholes.  It is unclear as 
to which manholes have ladders for entry and exit.   



 

32. How many of the manholes are restricted access? 
 

All manholes are considered to be restricted access, and require coordination with 
the US Capital Police for access.  Additional coordination may be required with 
individual jurisdictions and the District of Columbia dependant upon their 
location. 

 

33. Are any of the manholes prohibited from any use?  

 

At this time, there are no manholes that are prohibited from use providing 
coordination of access is made with the AOC and the US Capital Police. 

 

34. It was mentioned that tunnels must be under negative pressure.  Does the 
AOC or Power Plant presently monitor this with any type of monitoring 
devices or sensors?  
 

The tunnels are not currently monitored to ensure that the tunnels are maintained 
under negative pressure. 

 

35. An equipment list was distributed, can you send us the excel file 
electronically?  

Please contact Chris Lindsay at (202) 226-2172 or via email at clindsay@aoc.gov 
to request the equipment list. 

 

36. Do cell phones work in the tunnels? 
 

Cell phones do not work in the tunnels and are not an acceptable means of 
communication. 

 

37. The G tunnel is presently being abated for lead paint.  Are all other tunnels 
presently scheduled for lead paint abatement?  
 

The Green tunnel is not currently being abated for lead paint, and at this time, 
there is not a comprehensive abatement plan in place for lead paint abatement. 

 



38. Reference was made to the TMA computerized maintenance system.  Do you 
require us to provide a data administrator to handle all input into the system 
along with daily work order issuance?  
 

As outlined in Section C.2.1.4 the contractor is responsible for updating and 
maintaining maintenance and inspection records within the AOC TMA system.  It 
should be noted that these records will be the basis for monthly payments, and 
should be updated and completed for payment to be made each month.   

It is up to the contractor whether or not it wishes to dedicate one individual as a 
sole data administrator or to assign this task to various members of the seven (7) 
or ten (10) man team.   

 

39. Is all equipment entered into the TMA system along with all required tasks?  

 

At this time, all equipment is entered into TMA, however, required tasks are 
being finalized and it is anticipated that they will be fully developed and loaded 
into TMA prior to award of this contract. 

 

40. What percentage of issued PM’s are completed and what percentage 
presently goes to deferred maintenance? 
 

At the start of this contract, the PM period will start as if all PM’s are current and 
up to date.  The contractor will provide a schedule for the performance period of 
this contract that ensures all PM’s will be performed on time.   

 

41. What was the make up of the government’s maintenance team? Number of 
people and what trades?  
 

Currently, the AOC does not have a staffed ‘maintenance team’, necessitating the 
need for this contract.  Prior team levels have varied, however, it consisted of 
various trades including certified welders, asbestos and insulation workers and 
electricians.  It will be up to each contractor to determine the make-up of its 
proposed ‘core’ team.  The proposed trades incorporated into the core team will 
be evaluated and considered in the selection for this contract. 

 

42. What is the power available in the tunnels?  110-220-480V?  
 



Power available in the tunnels varies by location.  There are sources of 110V and 
220V throughout the tunnel systems, however, certain locations may require 
portable generators to supply power to equipment.  For bidding purposes, it 
should be assumed that: 

 

 10% of the tunnels are supplied with power sources within 100 ft. 

 50% of the tunnels are supplied with power sources within 500 ft.   

 30% of the tunnels are supplied with power sources within 1,000 ft. 

 10% of the tunnels have no power source within 1000 ft. 

 

43. When it becomes necessary to pump tunnels due to flooding, where is the 
water pumped to? 
 

The contractor will discharge all water into the local DC combined system or 
separate storm drain.  The contractor will be responsible for ensuring that 
discharges are within acceptable federal and local regulations for such discharges 
of storm water.  For example the contractor will verify that the pH and 
temperature are within acceptable DC WASA limits, that it contains no visible oil 
sheen and that it has no unusual odors or discoloration prior to discharging from a 
tunnel or vault. 

 

44. What are the contractor’s liabilities / responsibilities? 

 

The contractor will be ultimately responsible for completing the preventative 
maintenance and inspection requirements as outlined in this contract.  Should the 
AOC dictate other repair or inspection activities that cause the contractor to 
deviate from the approved schedule and from performing the planned preventative 
maintenance and inspection services, it is the contractor’s responsibility to 
demonstrate the cause of this deviation as outlined in the contract documents. 

The contractor will also be liable for ensuring the quality of their work.  Any 
system or component failures occur due negligent or substandard work performed 
by the contractor or one of their subcontractors, sole liability will rest with the 
contractor.   

It should also be noted that due to the maintenance backlog and age of the system, 
the contractor will not be held liable for equipment or system failures.  It is 
understood by the AOC that due to the age and condition of these systems, the 
contractor cannot be held liable for equipment or system failures. 

Should the CPP require the contractor to assist in operation of the system, it is 
understood that this represents a shared liability in that ultimate direction for 
operation is given by the AOC.  The contractor is responsible to supply qualified 



individuals that meet the qualifications outlined in the contract documents and 
that all individuals are trained and knowledgeable of steam system operations. 
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